

CHAPTER 60—H.F.No. 1383

An act relating to motor vehicles; repealing restrictions on handlebar height for motorcycles and motorized bicycles; amending Minnesota Statutes 2000, section 169.974, subdivision 3.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2000, section 169.974, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **VEHICLE EQUIPMENT.** (a) ~~No person shall operate any motorcycle equipped with handlebars if any part of such handlebars extend above the shoulders of the operator while seated with both feet on the ground.~~

(b) Any motorcycle with a seat designed or suited for use by a passenger shall be equipped with foot rests for the passenger. No person shall operate any motorcycle on the streets and highways after January 1, 1971, unless such motorcycle is equipped with at least one rear view mirror so attached and adjusted as to reflect to the operator a view of the roadway for a distance of at least 200 feet to the rear of the motorcycle and is equipped with not less than one horn which shall be audible at a distance of at least 200 feet under normal conditions.

(e) (b) All other applicable provisions of this chapter pertaining to motorcycle and other motor vehicle equipment shall apply to motorcycles, except those which by their nature have no application.

Presented to the governor April 27, 2001

Signed by the governor April 30, 2001, 2:53 p.m.

CHAPTER 61—H.F.No. 525

An act relating to state government; revising conditions under which public employees receive daily payments for service on boards and councils; requiring groups to adopt standards for daily payments; amending Minnesota Statutes 2000, sections 15.0575, subdivision 3; 15.059, subdivision 3; and 214.09, subdivision 3.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2000, section 15.0575, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **COMPENSATION.** (a) Members of the boards ~~must~~ may be compensated at the rate of \$55 a day spent on board activities, when authorized by the board,

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

plus expenses in the same manner and amount as authorized by the commissioner's plan adopted under section 43A.18, subdivision 2. Members who, as a result of time spent attending board meetings, incur child care expenses that would not otherwise have been incurred, may be reimbursed for those expenses upon board authorization.

(b) Members who are full-time state employees or full-time employees of the political subdivisions of the state ~~may must~~ not receive the daily payment, ~~but they may suffer no loss in compensation or benefits from the state or a political subdivision as a result of their service on the board for activities that occur during working hours for which they are compensated by the state or political subdivision.~~ However, a state or political subdivision employee may receive the daily payment if the employee uses vacation time for board activities. Members who are full-time state employees or full-time employees of the political subdivisions of the state may receive the expenses provided for in this subdivision unless the expenses are reimbursed by another source. Members who are state employees or employees of political subdivisions of the state may be reimbursed for child care expenses only for time spent on board activities that are outside their normal working hours.

(c) Each board must adopt internal standards prescribing what constitutes a day spent on board activities for purposes of making daily payments under this subdivision.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2000, section 15.059, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **COMPENSATION.** (a) Members of the advisory councils and committees ~~must may~~ be compensated at the rate of \$55 a day spent on council or committee activities, when authorized by the council or committee, plus expenses in the same manner and amount as authorized by the commissioner's plan adopted under section 43A.18, subdivision 2. Members who, as a result of time spent attending council or committee meetings, incur child care expenses that would not otherwise have been incurred, may be reimbursed for those expenses upon council or committee authorization.

If (b) Members who are state employees or employees of political subdivisions ~~must not~~ receive the daily compensation, and if the major part of their ~~for activities that occur during normal working hours for which they are also compensated by the state or political subdivision,~~ the employer shall deduct the daily compensation from the employee's compensation for the day. ~~In no other case may a member who is an employee of the state or a political subdivision suffer a loss in compensation or benefits from the state or political subdivision as a result of service on the council or committee.~~ However, a state or political subdivision employee may receive the daily payment if the employee uses vacation time for council or committee activity. Members who are full-time state employees or full-time employees of the political subdivisions of the state may receive the expenses provided for in this section unless the expenses are reimbursed by another source. Members who are state employees or employees of political subdivisions of the state may be reimbursed for child care expenses only for time spent on board activities that are outside their normal working hours.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

(c) Each council and committee must adopt internal standards prescribing what constitutes a day spent on council or committee activities for purposes of making daily payments under this subdivision.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2000, section 214.09, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **COMPENSATION.** (a) Members of the boards ~~must~~ may be compensated at the rate of \$55 a day spent on board activities, when authorized by the board, plus expenses in the same manner and amount as authorized by the commissioner's plan adopted under section 43A.18, subdivision 2. Members who, as a result of time spent attending board meetings, incur child care expenses that would not otherwise have been incurred, may be reimbursed for those expenses upon board authorization. If

(b) Members who are ~~full-time~~ state employees or employees of the political subdivisions of the state ~~must not~~ receive the daily payment, and if the major part of their ~~for~~ activities ~~that~~ occur during normal working hours for which they are also compensated by the state or political subdivision, ~~the employer shall deduct the daily payment from the employee's compensation for that day. In no other case may a board member who is an employee of the state or political subdivision suffer a loss in compensation or benefits as a result of service on the board. However, a state or political subdivision employee may receive the daily payment if the employee uses vacation time for board activity.~~ Members who are state employees or employees of the political subdivisions of the state may receive the expenses provided for in this subdivision unless the expenses are reimbursed by another source. Members who are state employees or employees of political subdivisions of the state may be reimbursed for child care expenses only for time spent on board activities that are outside their normal working hours.

(c) Each board must adopt internal standards prescribing what constitutes a day spent on board activities for purposes of making daily payments under this subdivision.

Sec. 4. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

Sections 1 to 3 are effective July 1, 2001, and apply to service on or after that date.

Presented to the governor April 27, 2001

Signed by the governor April 30, 2001, 2:51 p.m.

CHAPTER 62—H.F.No. 779

An act relating to commerce; modifying provisions dealing with motor vehicle dealer franchise transfers; amending Minnesota Statutes 2000, section 80E.13.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.